14 532

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

۰.

.

CASE NO.

The second
FLED
SID J. WHITE
CLERK SUPREME COURT
Deputy Clerk

STANLEY B. ELLISON,

Respondent.

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

EDWARD C. HILL, JR. ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #238041

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In June 1988 Respondent was charged with second degree murder and grand theft stemming from an incident involving his use of an automobile. (R 1). He was tried by a jury and convicted on both counts. (R 55-56).

On Appeal the First District issued a written opinion reducing the conviction for second degree murder to a conviction for manslaughter. It held as a matter of law that the evidence was insufficient to support a verdict of second degree murder. Further, the First District ruled that the Respondent' status of being on a Juvenile Furlough from his commitment to the Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services was not legal status at the time of the offense as contemplated by Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.701.

From that ruling Petitioner filed his notice requesting this Court to accept jurisdiction in this case.

- 2 -

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

Two separate District Courts of Appeal have reached diametrically opposite answers to the question of whether a juvenile furlough status is to be considered as "legal status" when computing a guidelines scoresheet. As there is direct and express conflict on this issue and as this is likely to be a reoccurring phenomenon this Court should accept jurisdiction.

ISSUE II

The decision of the First District in this case which holds that, you have to intend to injure a specific victim, conflicts with decision of this Court indicating second degree murder is not a specific intent crime. It also conflicts with decision of Florida courts which hold that the issue of the defendant's intent is a question for the jury.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

OPINION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW.

In <u>Ellison v. State</u>, 14 F.L.W. 1592, (Fla. 1st DCA 1989), the First District Court of Appeal held that the defendant's status of being on juvenile furlough was not "legal status at the time of the offenses." Therefore, the court ruled that it was error for the trial court to include points in that category when computing a defendant's guideline score.

In sharp contrast to this ruling is the position taken by the Second District Court of Appeal in the case of <u>Butler v.</u> <u>State</u>, 543 So.2d 432 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). In <u>Butler</u>, the juvenile was also on furlough status at the time he committed another offense. The court held that it was correct and proper to score points for legal constraint pursuant to Rule 3.701(d)(6), Fla.R.Crim.P. Thus, these two cases are in direct and express conflict on the same point of law.

Additionally, by failing to equate adult and juvenile constraints the decision of the First District is also at odds with Espinosa v. State, 496 So.2d 236 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986). In Espinosa the court found it proper to score community control even though the community control was a Juvenile restriction. Therefore, because express and direct conflict exists on this point of law Petitioner requests this Court to accept jurisdiction and resolve the issue.

· .

issue II

THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT OR OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL.

The opinion of the First District correctly holds that the grade or degree of a homicidal act is dependent upon the factual circumstance and is typically one for the jury to resolve.

The court then proceeds to reweigh the evidence and purports to find, as a matter of law, the evidence was insufficient because there was no evidence that Ellison acted out of ill will toward or directed at his eventual victim. This action directly conflicts with <u>Tibbs v State</u>, 397 So.2d 1120 (Fla.1981) and <u>State v. Law</u>, 14 F.L.W. 387 (Fla.1989) on the role of appellate courts in dealing with sufficiency of the evidence questions.

This decision also conflicts with established case law in other ways.

Second degree murder is defined in Sec. 782.04(2), Fla.Stat., as

> (2) The unlawful killing of a human being, when perpetrated by any act imminently dangerous to another and evincing a depraved mind regardless of human life, although without any premeditated design to effect the death of any particular individual, is murder in the second degree and constitutes a felony of the first degree, ...

> > - 6 -

This court held that second degree murder is a general intent crime. <u>Gentry v. State</u>, 437 So.2d 1097 (Fla.1983). The First District's decision in this case holds that a defendant must have a specific victim in mind in order to commit second degree murder. This adds an element of specific intent to this crime contrary to <u>Gentry</u>. See also <u>Hooker v. State</u>, 497 So.2d 982 (Fla.2d DCA 1986). Further this requirement for a specific victim conflicts with the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in <u>Manis v. State</u>, 528 So.2d 1342 (Fla.2d DCA 1988), which held that that manner in which one operated a motor vehicle which resulted in the death of another could be second degree murder.

Further in ruling as a matter of law that no construction of the defendant's actions could support a second degree conviction, this case conflicts with the decision of the Fourth District in <u>Hacker v. State</u>, 510 So.2d 304 (Fla.4th DCA 1986). In <u>Hacker</u> the death was caused by an individual who was driving recklessly while fleeing a robbery. In <u>Hacker</u> the court held that the defendant created an inherently dangerous situation and stated that the killing was a predictable result of fleeing the scene at a high rate of speed, and such acts could even support a first degree felony murder conviction.

Further the case conflicts with cases such as <u>Jones v</u>. <u>State</u>, 192 So.2d 285 (Fla.3rd DCA 1966), which indicate that **issues** of intent are issues for the jury to decide and with

- 7 -

Lincoln v. State, 459 So.2d 1030, 1031 (Fla.1984) in which this Court held that he manner of driving a getaway car in an attempt to avoid the police was sufficient prima facie evidence of intent to participate in the underlying offense so as to allow the trier of fact to properly infer an intent to commit the underlying offense.

• •

Since the decision of the District Court conflicts with the above cited cases and adds a whole new element to second degree murder the petitioner requests this Court accept jurisdiction and resolve this matter. Lincoln v. State, 459 So.2d 1030, 1031 (Fla.1984) in which this Court held that he manner of driving a getaway car in an attempt to avoid the police was sufficient prima facie evidence of intent to participate in the underlying offense so as to allow the **trier** of fact to properly infer an intent to commit the underlying offense.

Since the decision of the District Court conflicts with the above cited cases and adds a whole new element to second degree murder the petitioner requestibles Court accept jurisdiction and resolve this matter.

CONCLUSION

Based on the above cited legal authorities, Petitioner prays this Honorable Court accept jurisdiction in this case.