IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Petitioner,

VS.

STANLEY B. ELLISON,

Respondent.

AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT, FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

LOUIS O. FROST, JR. PUBLIC DEFENDER

JAMES T. MILLER
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
Fourth Judicial Circuit
407 Duval County Courthouse
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
(904) 630-i548

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT FLORIDA BAR NO. 0293679

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, the State of Florida, Appellee below, prosecuted Respondent, Stanley B. Ellison, Appellant below, in the Circuit Court. References to the Record on Appeal will be noted by "R" followed by the appropriate page number.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts with the following addition: On August 15, 1989, the First District Court of Appeal. withdrew its original opinion and substituted a new opinion in its place (attached as kppendix I). The August 15, 1989, opinion was identical to the first opinion except for the following certification to this Court on the issue of 'juvenile furlough status" as "legal status at the time of the offense:" Pursuant to Rule 9.030(a) (2) (A) (iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, we certify that this decision expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another District Court of Appeal on the same question of law. See Butler v. State, 14 FLW 1244 (Fla. 2d DCA May 19, 1989).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Respondent agrees that the instant case conflicts with Butler v. State, 543 So.2d 432 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). The decision of the First District does not conflict with other cases on the issue of second degree murder. The instant opinion did not decide the factual issue of intent based on conflicting evidence - the First District simply decided there was no proof of facts from which a rational jury could infer that Respondent acted with ill-will, spite or malice. Therefore, there is no conflict with other cases on the same point of law.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE ONE

THE OPINION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW.

Respondent agrees the decision in this case expressly conflicts with Butler v. State, 543 So.2d 432 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). However, this case does not expressly and directly conflict with Espinosa v. State, 496 So.2d 236 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986) on the same point of law. Espinosa v. State, supra, involved juvenile community control under the guidelines. This case involves juvenile furlough status, not community control. Community control is defined as a part of legal status under Rule 3.701, Fla.R.Crim.P. Juvenile furlough status is not included in Rule 3.701 (D) (6) • Consequently, no express conflict exists with Espinosa.

ISSUE TWO

THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT OR OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL.

The decision in this case does not expressly and directly conflict with other decisions on the same point of law concerning second-degree murder. None of the cases cited by Petitioner involve similar facts to the instant case. There is no express conflict with those cases.

The First District decided in this case that:

"There is no view of the facts herein which the jury could properly conclude that the instant constituted second-degree murder, there evidence i s no " from Ellison's done actions were ill - will, hatred, spite or evil intent."

Petitioner's assertion that this case conflicts with <u>Tibbs v.</u>

<u>State</u>, 397 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 1981) is without merit. In <u>Tibbs</u>, this Court decided whether an appellate court should consider the legal sufficiency as well as evidentiary weight of the evidence produced at trial. The Court decided legal sufficiency was the only proper concern of an appellate court. The issue on appeal was "after all conflicts in the evidence and all reasonable inferences therefrom have been rendered in favor of the verdict on

appeal, [is] there substantial, competent evidence to support the verdict and judgment." 397 So.2d at 1123. The First District simply decided there was not substantial, competent evidence to support a second-degree murder verdict.

The cases cited by Petitioner on specific intent are irrelevant to this case. The First District did not decide that second-degree murder requires a specific intent, it decided there was no proof Respondent committed his acts of reckless driving with ill-will, hatred or spite. The fact that Respondent did not direct his actions towards a specific person(s) simply underscores the lack of proof of ill-will or malice. Such lack of proof is not an element of proof for specific intent. Petitioner is correct in contending that second-degree murder is a general intent crime. However, Petitioner misstates this principle there is no need to prove a specific intent to kill. State, 437 So.2d 1097 (Fla. 1983). There is still a general intent to do the prohibited act with ill-will, spite or malice. Therefore, there is no express conflict with the cases cited by Petitioner on this issue.

There is no conflict with <u>State v. Hacker</u>, 510 So.2d **304** (Fla. 4th **DCA** 1986). <u>Hacker</u> involved proof of a felony - first degree murder charge. The precise issue was whether the trial court erred in granting a Motion to Dismiss. The factual and legal differences between <u>Hacker</u> and the instant case negate any possible conflicts. Lastly, there is no conflict with the cases on the question of intent being a jury issue. The First District did not decide the issue of intent; it simply decided there was no

proof of <u>acts</u> by Respondent from which a jury could infer ill-will, spite or malice. Therefore, the instant case does not conflict with Jones v. State, 192 So.2d 285 (Fla. 3d DCA 1966) and <u>Lincoln v. State</u>, 459 So.2d 1030 (Fla. 1984). These cases hold that if there is some evidence from which a jury could infer the requisite intent, the ultimate resolution of that issue is for the trier of fact, not an appellate court. The opinion in this case did not depart from this principle — it decided there was a complete lack of proof of facts from which the jury could infer general intent for second-degree murder.

CONCLUSION

Respondent agrees the opinion of the First District expressly conflicts with Butler v. State, 543 So.2d 432 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989). However, the other grounds suggested by Petitioner are not express and direct conflicts under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.